
  
 
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

TUESDAY, APRIL 7, 2020 
8:30 A.M. 

 

ELECTRONIC MEETING ORIGINATING FROM THE 
WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

MANAGER’S CONFERENCE ROOM 
 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

8:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   

 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
March 17, 2020, Regular Meeting  
March 17, 2020, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 7, 2020, AGENDA  13 

8:35 4  WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ELECTRONIC 
MEETING POLICY 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE 15 

8:40 5  CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE MS. JENNIFER GREENE 19 

8:45 6  REQUEST FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP) FUNDS MS. LY MARZE 21 

8:50 7  REQUEST FOR FUNDS TO UPGRADE AND PROFESSIONALIZE THE 
DOC WATSON MUSEUM AT THE HISTORIC COVE CREEK SCHOOL 

MR. DAVID TYNER 23 

8:55 8  REQUEST FOR NC COOPERATIVE EXTENSION TO PARTNER WITH 
APPALACHIAN  STATE UNIVERSITY ON GRANT PROJECT FOR 
VETERAN FARMERS 

MR. JIM HAMILTON 29 

9:00 9  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION (EDC) ALLOCATION 
RECOMMENDATION TO HIGH COUNTRY FOOD HUB 

MR. JOE FURMAN 31 

9:05 10  BID AWARD REQUEST FOR THE  COMPLETION OF THE GUY FORD 
ROAD PADDLE ACCESS 

MR. JOE FURMAN 47 

9:10 11  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Watauga County Humane Society Request to Apply 

for Small Business Loan Under the Recently Enacted 
CARE Act 

B. Vehicle Purchase 
C. Announcements  

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
49 

 
 

51 
55 

9:15 12  PUBLIC COMMENT  56 

10:15 13  BREAK  56 

10:20 14  CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

 56 

10:30 15  ADJOURN   

 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
March 17, 2020, Regular Meeting  
March 17, 2020, Closed Session 
 
 

  

040720 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2020 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
March 17, 2020, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga 
County Administration Building in Boone, North Carolina. 
  
  PRESENT: John Welch, Chairman 

Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman 
Larry Turnbow, Commissioner 

    Charlie Wallin, Commissioner 
    Perry Yates, Commissioner 
    Andrea Capua, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Welch called the meeting to order at 5:32 P.M.  
 
Commissioner Wallin opened with a prayer and Commissioner Turnbow led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Chairman Welch congratulated Ms. Kayla Lasure upon recently winning awards for her work as 
a reporter with the Watauga Democrat. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the following minutes: 
 

• February 13 & 14, 2020, Special Meeting (Annual Pre-Budget Retreat) 
• February 18, 2020, Regular Meeting  
• February 18, 2020, Closed Session 
• February 24, 2020, Special Meeting (Joint Meeting with Town of Boone) 
• February 24, 2020, Special Meeting Closed Session (End of Joint Meeting with Town 

of Boone) 
 

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the 
February 13 & 14, 2020, special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the 
February 18, 2020, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

DRAFT 
040720 BCC Meeting

2



 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the 
February 18, 2020, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the 
February 24, 2020, special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the 
February 24, 2020, special meeting closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the March 17, 2020, agenda. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to approve the 
March 17, 2020, agenda as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE  
Ms. Jennifer Greene, AppHealthCare Director, provided an update on the Coronavirus (COVID-
19) pandemic.  The report was for information only and, therefore, no action was required. 

HIGH COUNTRY RESTORATION COALITION REQUESTS 
Ms. Debbie Shetterly, High Country Restoration Coalition, was not able to attend the meeting.  
On her behalf, County Manager Geouque presented a proposed resolution committing the 
County to using and promoting native plants on County-owned property. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to adopt the resolution in 
support of the use of native plants as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

040720 BCC Meeting

3



SHERIFF’S OFFICE VEHICLE PURCHASE 
County Manager Geouque presented a bid for a 2020 Toyota Tacoma 4WD pickup from Modern 
Toyota, the North Carolina Sheriff’s Association vendor.  The cost for the vehicle, including tax 
and tag, was $26,933.29.  County Manager Geouque stated that the current cost exceeds the 
budgeted amount and therefore a budget amendment would be forthcoming recognizing 
additional narcotics funds. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to award the bid for a 
2020 Toyota Tacoma 4WD pickup in the amount of $26,933.29 to Modern Toyota, the North 
Carolina Sheriff’s Association vendor.  
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

SANITATION MATTERS 
A. Engineering and Design Services for Landfill Improvements 
 

Mr. Rex Buck, Operations Service Director, presented a proposal by McGill Associates for 
services pertaining to trailer storage area improvements, Innovation Drive improvements, and 
sediment basin improvements.  These improvements were identified for commencement during 
the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat. 
 
Mr. Buck recommended the acceptance of McGill Associates’ proposal in the amounts listed for 
the following services: 
 

1. Trailer Storage Area Improvement - $25,800 
2. Innovation Drive Improvements - $74,700 
3. Sediment Basin Improvements - $61,160 

 

Adequate funds were budgeted to cover the services for these improvements with future requests 
for construction approval to be forthcoming.   
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve McGill 
Associates’ proposal for trailer storage area improvements, in the amount of $25,800; Innovation 
Drive improvements, in the amount of $74,700; and Sediment Basin improvements, in the 
amount of $61,160. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
B. Feasibility Study Regarding Organic Materials Management  
 

Mr. Buck presented a proposal from Baker Advisors to conduct a feasibility study to determine 
the best management policy regarding organic materials.  This issue was discussed at the Annual 
Pre-Budget Retreat and Board direction was for staff to engage Baker Advisors to conduct the 
study. 
 

040720 BCC Meeting

4



Baker Advisors proposal, in the amount of $17,300, would examine the following options: 1) 
County Operated Local Retail Market; 2) County Operated Wholesale Market; and 3) Third-
party Operation.  Mr. Buck stated that adequate funds have been budgeted to cover the expense. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to direct staff to engage Baker 
Advisors, in the amount of $17,300, to conduct the study as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Sanitation Capital Expenditure Requests 
 

Mr. Buck requested to purchase up to $45,433 in solid waste containers from Baker Waste 
Equipment, Inc. on an as needed basis.  The containers were needed to allow for the County to 
provide additional commercial solid waste services.  Currently, the program is being tested in the 
28607 zip code area with the desire to expand Countywide.  The need for additional containers is 
due to the success thus far of the service.  The lowest price for the containers has been received 
from Baker Waste Equipment. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to authorize the expenditure 
of funds for solid waste containers, not to exceed $45,433, to ensure continued expansion of 
services. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED PROJECT ON AGING HOME CARE POLICY REVISIONS 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Project on Aging Director, presented proposed amendments to the agency’s 
operations and policies including requirements of the NC Division of Health Service Regulation. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the amendments 
to the Project on Aging Home Care Policy as presented by Ms. Boitnotte. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
 

Tax Administrator, Mr. Larry Warren, presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
February 2020.  The report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 
 
B. Refunds and Releases 
 

Mr. Warren presented the Refunds and Releases Report for February 2020 for Board approval: 

040720 BCC Meeting

5



 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for February 2020 as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Board of Equalization and Review Schedule 
 

Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, discussed the scheduling of the FY 2020 Board of 
Equalization and Review (E&R).  Mr. Warren stated that the Board may create a special Board 
of Equalization and Review or, as in previous years, the Board of Commissioners may serve as 
the Board of Equalization and Review and include the County Manager to serve as an alternate 
member.  The County Manager would only serve if a quorum could not be met otherwise.   
 
Mr. Warren stated that there had only been fifteen appeals received as of this date with only five 
wanting to appear before the Board of E&R. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the County would look for State Guidance if the 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic interrupted the schedule. 
 
County Attorney Capua stated that the County Attorneys needed to work on a policy for 
questions about meetings during the pandemic as it would be helpful to have everything 
coordinated Countywide rather than department by department. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the County would air on the side of safety but would work 
with the County Attorney to continue to conduct meetings electronically; possibly including the 
Board of E&R meetings. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, resolved to establish the Board 
of Equalization and Review as follows: 
 

MEMBERSHIP: 
• Shall consist of the 5 member County Commissioners, each having one vote. 
• Three members shall constitute a quorum. 
• One alternate shall be appointed consisting of the County Manager. 
• The alternate shall only serve to meet a quorum of the Board for a scheduled 

Board of Equalization and Review meeting. 
 
POWERS AND DUTIES: 
The powers and duties of this Board shall be as specified in NCGS 105-328 and 
Article 21 of the Machinery Act. 

 
VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 

040720 BCC Meeting

6

























mailto:public.comments@watgov.org








































































Blank Page 
 
 

040720 BCC Meeting

54



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Announcements 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute Building Dedication and Open House 
scheduled for Tuesday, April 7, 2020, at 5:30 P.M. has been cancelled.  
 
The Watauga Compassionate Community Initiative 2020 Conference will be held on Saturday, 
May 16, 2020, from 8:00 A.M. to 3:15 P.M. at Watauga High School. 
 
 
  

040720 BCC Meeting

55



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 14: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

040720 BCC Meeting

56


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the April 7, 2020, Agenda
	Watauga County Board of Commissioners Electronic Meeting Policy
	Coronavirus (COVID-19) Community Update
	Request for Capital Improvement Project (CIP) Funds
	Request for Funds to Upgrade and Professionalize the Doc Watson Museum at the Historic Cove Creek School
	Request for NC Cooperative Extension to Partner with Appalachian State University on Grant Project for Veteran Farmers
	Economic Development Commission (EDC) Allocation Recommendation to High Country Food Hub
	Bid Award Request for the Completion of the Guy Ford Road Paddle Access
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Watauga County Humane Society Request to Apply for Small Business Loan Under the Recently Enacted CARE Act
	B.  Vehicle Purchase
	C.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



